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Mission Statement

To be the premier sugar and allied product’s manufacturer while providing our clients with
flexibility, on-time delivery, and consistent quality and to achieve sustainable and
equitable expansion and growth through efficient and effective resources and at the same
time developing a corporate business environment most suited to all the employees and

people Concerned.

Vision Statement

To transform the Company into a market leader for the Quality Sugar Manufacturing,
while keeping our focus on the growing customer base, be characterized by a high degree
of professionalism and is accountable for the successful fulfilment of the company’s

mission, and to play a meaningful role in the economy of Pakistan

Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 42nd Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of Abdullah Shah
Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Tuesday, January 27, 2026 at
9:00 a.m. at Diamond Banquet, Plot No. C-36, 37 Extension, Gulshan-e- Hadeed, Phase-1,
Karachi and via video link to transact the following Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Chairman’s Review Report, Reports of Directors and
Auditors together with Audited Annual Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended 30 September 2025.

2. To appoint Company’s auditors and fix their remuneration. The members are hereby
notified that the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have recommended the
name of retiring auditors M/s Zahid Jamil & Co, Chartered Accountants for re-
appointment as auditors of the Company.

By Order of the Board

A

Saleem Abbas
Lahore: January 06, 2026 Company Secretary

Notes:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from January 21, 2026 to
January 27, 2026 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the
Company’s Independent Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited,
CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi by the close of
business (5:00 PM) on January 20, 2026, will be treated in time for the purposes of
entitlement to attend, speak and vote at the AGM.

2. For safety and wellbeing of shareholders and the public at large The Company has also
arranged participation via video link. The members can attend the AGM via video link
using smart phones/tablets/computers for safety and well-being of the members of the
Company and general public. To attend the meeting through video link, members and
their proxies are requested to register themselves by providing the following information
along with valid copy of Computerized National Identity Card (both sides)/passport,
attested copy of board resolution / power of attorney (in case of corporate shareholders)
through WhatsApp at 03028407700 or email at saleem.magsi@maccagroup.com by -
January 24, 2026.

CDC

Name of | Company Account Cell )

member CNIC No. No/Folio Number. Email address
No.

The members who are registered after the necessary verification shall be provided a
video link by the Company on the same email address that they email with the Company
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with. The Login facility will remain open from start of the meeting till its proceedings
are concluded.

The shareholders who wish to send their comments/ suggestions on the agenda of the

AGM can email the Company at saleem.magsi@maccagroup.com or WhatsApp at
03028407700.

Shareholders are also encouraged to consolidate their attendance and participation
through proxies for minimal public interaction.

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint any other member as
his/her proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her and a proxy so appointed shall have
the same rights, as respects attending, speaking and voting at the AGM as are available
to the members. A Proxy must be a member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority under
which it is signed or a notarial attested copy of the power of attorney must be deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting.
Proxy Forms, in English and Urdu languages, have been dispatched to the members
along with the notice of AGM.

Members who have deposited their shares into Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited (“CDC”) will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid
down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

A. For Attending the Meeting

a. In case of Individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder and their
registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall authenticate
his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or, original Passport at the time
of attending the Meeting.

b. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided
earlier) at the time of the Meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies

a. In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder and their
registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the
proxy form as per above requirements.

b. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons, whose names, addresses and
CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

c. Attested copies of the CNIC or the passport of beneficial owners and the proxy
shall be furnished with the proxy form.

d. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the
Meeting.

e. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature shall be furnished (unless it has been provided earlier) along
with proxy form to the Company.

Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited
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6. Change of address

Members are requested to promptly notify to the Company’s Share Registrar of any
change in their addresses.

7. Placement of Financial Statements and Other Information on Company’s
website

The Company has placed a copy of the Notice of AGM, Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended September 30, 2025 along with Auditors and Directors Reports
thereon, Chairman’s Review and other information on the website of the Company:
www.asgsml.com

8. Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) of Shareholders (Mandatory)

Shareholders are requested to provide if not already provided, copy of their valid CNIC to the
Company’s Independent Share Registrar at the address given herein below. A legible scanned
copy of the same can also be forwarded at saleem.magsi@maccagroup.com along with

folio number and updated address for correspondence

9. Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Account

The shareholders having physical shareholding may open CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or
investor account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into script-less form. This will
facilitate them in many ways including safe custody and sale of shares, any time they want, as the
trading of physical shares is not permitted as per existing regulations of the Stock Exchange. Further,
Section 72 of the Act states that after the commencement of the Act from a date notified by SECP, a
company having share capital, shall have shares in book-entry form only. Every existing company shall
be required to replace its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and
from the date notified by SECP, within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of
the Act.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

| am pleased to present the Chairman's Review on behalf of the Board of Directors of Abdullah Shah Ghazi
Sugar Mills Limited (the “Company”) for the financial year ended September 30, 2025. This review outlines the
performance of the Board and evaluates the effectiveness of its oversight, governance practices, and the role
played by its committees in achieving the Company's objectives.

Board Composition and Governance Framework

The Board of Directors comprises a balanced mix of executive, non-executive and independent directors,
including female representation. The members of the Board possess diverse professional expertise and
extensive experience across various business and functional areas. The Board has been constituted in full
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019.

The Board recognizes its collective responsibility for the overall stewardship of the Company, including strategic
direction, policy formulation, risk oversight, and ensuring the integrity of corporate and financial reporting. The
Board remains fully committed to maintaining high standards of transparency, accountability, and ethical conduct
in line with best corporate governance practices.

Board Committees

To enhance effectiveness and ensure focused oversight, the Board has constituted the following committees:
e Audit Committee
e HumanResource & Remuneration Committee

Each committee is composed of suitably qualified directors possessing relevant skills and experience. The
committees operate under clearly defined Terms of Reference approved by the Board and discharge their
responsibilities independently while reporting their findings and recommendations to the Board for
consideration.

Compliance and Corporate Responsibility

The Board actively monitors compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and governance standards. It
promotes a culture of ethical conduct, integrity, diversity, and continuous professional development across the
organization. The Board is also mindful of the Company's responsibilities as a responsible corporate citizen,
particularly in the areas of employee welfare, occupational health and safety, environmental protection, and
community development.

The Board is satisfied with the efforts undertaken by the Company in fulfilling its corporate social responsibilities
and remains committed to further strengthening these initiatives in the years ahead.

Performance Evaluation

In accordance with regulatory requirements and good governance practices, the Board conducts an annual self-
evaluation of its performance, as well as that of its committees, after the close of each financial year. The
evaluation process assesses the effectiveness of governance structures, decision-making processes, and
oversight functions. Based on the assessment carried out for the year under review, the overall performance of
the Board and its committees has been considered satisfactory.

The Board will continue to play a proactive role in setting the strategic direction of the Company, safeguarding
shareholders' interests, and guiding management to conduct business operations in line with approved
strategies and regulatory requirements. The Board remains committed to promoting sustainable growth,
operational discipline, and long-term value creation while upholding the principles of sound corporate
governance.

Muhammad Rasheed Rana
Chairman

Lahore

January 06, 2026

Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited 8
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT
In the Name of Allah, the Most Gracious, the Most Merciful
Dear Members,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to present the Directors’ Report together
with the audited financial statements of Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited (“the
Company”) for the financial year ended September 30, 2025, along with the Auditors’
Report thereon, to be laid before the members at the 42nd Annual General Meeting.

1. Business Overview

The year under review remained extremely challenging for the Company. During the
financial year ended September 30, 2025, the mill operated for a limited period of 23 days,
whereas in the preceding year the mill remained largely non-operational. The constrained
operations significantly impacted production volumes and financial performance. Despite
these limitations, the management continued to focus on cost containment and preservation
of the Company’s assets.

2. Financial Performance

A summary of the Company’s financial results for the year under review, together with
comparative figures for the preceding year, is given below:

2025 2024
Particulars (Rupees) (Rupees)
Net Sales 273,713,570 -
Gross Loss (248,538,055) (220,528,678)
Net Loss After Tax (310,716,185) (191,533,374)
Loss per Share (Rupees) (3.92) (2.42)

Key Performance Indicators

e Gross loss as a percentage of sales: 90.8%
¢ Netloss as a percentage of sales: 113.5%

3. Performance Analysis
o The limited operations during the year resulted in sales revenue; however, fixed and
variable operating costs adversely affected overall profitability.
e The net loss for the year increased primarily due to operational inefficiencies arising
from short-duration crushing and unavoidable fixed overheads.
e The loss per share increased from Rs. 2.42 in the preceding year to Rs. 3.92 during
the year under review.

Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited 10
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4. Challenges and Strategic Direction

The continued non-operational or partially operational status of the mill remains a key
concern. The management is actively considering the following strategic initiatives:

o Exploration of strategic partnerships and alliances to revive operations.
e Optimization and potential monetization of idle and underutilized assets.

e Development of a comprehensive turnaround and restructuring plan aimed at long-
term sustainability.

5. Dividend

In view of the accumulated losses, the Board of Directors has not recommended any
dividend for the year ended September 30, 2025.

6. Future Outlook

The Board remains cautiously optimistic regarding the future prospects of the Company. The
key focus areas include:
Revival of Operations

¢ Formulation of a phased operational restart plan.
e Exploration of funding options through financial institutions, investors, and other
viable sources.

Cost Optimization

e Continued control of non-essential expenditures.
e Adoption of technology-driven solutions to improve efficiency upon resumption of
operations.

Strategic Alliances and Market Expansion

e Entering into joint ventures or outsourcing arrangements to reduce operational
burden.

e Identifying new markets and product diversification opportunities post-revival.

7. Risk and Uncertainties

The Company operates in a challenging economic and regulatory environment. Key risks
include liquidity constraints, volatility in sugar prices, and operational uncertainties. The
management continues to monitor these risks closely and is committed to strengthening
internal controls and financial discipline.

8. Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
The Directors confirm that:

e The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

e Proper books of account have been maintained.
e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied.

Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited
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e The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored.

e There are no significant doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

e The Company has complied with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017, the
Code of Corporate Governance, and relevant regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

A statement of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is annexed.

9. Changes in the Nature of Business

No material changes occurred during the year in the nature of the Company’s business.

10. Auditors’ Report

There is no qualification or modification in the Auditors’ Report for the year ended
September 30, 2025.

11. Material Changes After the Reporting Date

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

12. Board of Directors
The composition of the Board during the year was as follows:

e Mr. Muhammad Rasheed Rana — Chairman / Non-Executive Director
e Mr. Muhammad Dawood — Chief Executive / Executive Director

e Mr. Yasir Igbal — Executive Director

e Mr. Fiaz Qadeer Butt — Independent Director

o Mst. Bilgees Begum — Independent Director

e Mr. Amjad Abbas — Non-Executive Director

e Mr. Muddssar Igbal — Non-Executive Director

During the year, four (04) meetings of the Board of Directors were held, and attendance was
satisfactory.

13. Board Committees
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, including an independent director as
Chairman. Four meetings were held during the year.

Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited 12
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Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee was constituted in accordance with
applicable regulations. One meeting was held during the year.

14. Directors’ Remuneration

The Board has approved a transparent Directors’ Remuneration Policy in line with applicable
laws and best corporate governance practices.

15. Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company remains committed to responsible business practices, employee welfare,
environmental protection, and support for local communities.

16. Pattern of Shareholding
The pattern of shareholding as at September 30, 2025, is annexed to this report.

17. Auditors

M/s Zahid Jamil & Company, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the financial year 2025-26.
The Audit Committee and the Board have recommended their re-appointment.

18. Acknowledgement

The Board expresses its appreciation to the shareholders, employees, bankers, sugarcane
farmers, and all other stakeholders for their continued support and cooperation.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

N ESRY

Yasir Iqgbal Muhammad Dawood
Director Chief Executive
Lahore

January 06, 2026
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6 YEARS OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

(Figure in Thousand)

| | 2025 | 2024 [ 2023 | 2022 | 2021 | 2020 |
Gross sales 323,275 502,407 - - 68,360
Net sales 273,714 385,282 - - 58,427
Cost of sales 522,252 220,529 843,256 195,595 200,934 260,827
Gross profit (248,538)  (220,529)  (457,974)  (195,595)  (200,934)  (202,400)
Administrative and selling expenses 16,773 14,905 33,666 25,729 31,066 14,465
Operating Profit / (Loss) (265,311)  (235,434)  (491,641)  (221,324)  (232,000)  (216,865)
Interest expenses 150,198 195,265 149,876 88,642 35,024 77,878
Levy 4,041 - - - - -
Other income 20,778 208,201 448,049 239 92,410 -
Profit before taxation (398,772)  (222,498)  (193,468)  (309,727)  (174,615)  (294,743)
Profit after taxation (310,716)  (191,533)  (283,614)  (319,537)  (222,152)  (209,298)
Basic earnings per share Rs. (3.98) (2.42) (3.58) (4.03) (2.80) (2.64)
Crushing days 23 35 - - -
Cane Crushed TPD 1,881 1,236 - - -
Sugar production M.Tons 1,024 3,902 - - -
Sugar recovery % age 6.65 9.23 - - -
Molasses production M.Tons 1,085 2,170 - - -
Molasses recovery % age 5.01 5.03 - - -

Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited 18
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2025
FORM "20" THE COMPANIES ACT 2017 (Section 227)(2)(f)

1 Incorporation Number
2 Name of Company

3 Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholding as 30-09-2025

# Of Shareholders

Shareholdings'Slab

Total Shares Held

940
762
208
339
141
51
45
37
19
13
15
8

P NN WO WO oG

PR NRPRPRPRPRPRPNWRNRPRPRPRRRNRRLRLNWEG

[Eny

2667

1
101
501
1001
5001
10001
15001
20001
25001
30001
35001
40001
45001
50001
55001
60001
65001
70001
75001
80001
85001
95001
100001
105001
110001
115001
120001
125001
130001
140001
145001
150001
165001
170001
175001
185001
195001
200001
215001
230001
235001
265001
285001
295001
305001
345001
450001
62090001

to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to

100
500
1000
5000
10000
15000
20000
25000
30000
35000
40000
45000
50000
55000
60000
65000
70000
75000
80000
85000
90000
100000
105000
110000
115000
120000
125000
130000
135000
145000
150000
155000
170000
175000
180000
190000
200000
205000
220000
235000
240000
270000
290000
300000
310000
350000
455000
62095000

63,301
282,829
189,675
976,012

1,152,229
675,855
840,773
870,268
542,824
430,014
592,900
344,579
740,401
425,455
296,500
190,020
340,725
224,000
160,000
168,975

90,000
993,466
309,105
218,881
114,500
120,000
123,100
259,000
131,500
145,000
150,000
154,050
167,000
173,175
350,871
189,673
600,000
408,101
220,000
233,850
240,000
269,100
290,000
300,000
614,500
346,500
450,450

62,092,509
79,261,666
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Categories of Shareholders | Shareholders | Shares Held | Percentage
Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
MR. FAIZ QADEER BUTT 1 100 0.00
MUHAMMAD RASHID RANA 1 400 0.00
YASIR IQBAL 1 400 0.00
MR. MUHAMMAD DAWOOD 1 400 0.00
MR. AMJAD ABBAS 1 100 0.00
MR. MUDDSSAR IQBAL 1 100 0.00
MRS. BILQEES BEGUM 1 100 0.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
HAQ BAHU SUGAR MILLS (PVT) LTD 2 62,215,609 78.49
NIT and ICP 1 20,000 0.03
Executives - - -
Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking finance companies, 2 433 0.00
Insurance Companies 1 500 0.00
Mutual Funds and Modarabas 1 101,400 0.13
General Public
a. Local 2,586 15,546,530 19.61
b. Foreign 49 780,324 0.98
Others 18 595,270 0.75
Totals 2,667 79,261,666 100.00
Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage
HAQ BAHU SUGAR MILLS (PVT) LTD 62,215,609 78.49

6 Signature of Company Secretary

7 Name of Signatory Saleem Abbas

8 Designation Company Secretary

9 CNIC Number 32304-8810990-5

10 Date

9/30/2025

Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited 20
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R A N T IR
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of ABDULLAH SHAH GHAZI SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of ABDULLAH SHAH GHAZI SUGAR MILLS
LIMITED, which comprise the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2025, and the statement
of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and we state that we have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at September 30, 2025 and of the loss, other
comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2, which indicates that as at statement of financial position date, the Company
incurred a net loss before tax of Rs. 398,152,740/- (2024: Rs. 222,498,716/-) in the current year including
depreciation of Rs. 165,886,355/- (2024: Rs. 152,904,200/-). The current liabilities exceed the current
assets by an amount of Rs. 2,950,447,020/- (2024: Rs. 2,694,161,239/-) and its accumulated loss stands out
at Rs. 2,802,233,637/- (2024: Rs. 2,548,814,371/-). These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore
the Company may not be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. However, these financial statements have been prepared on “going concern basis” in
consideration of mitigating factors mentioned in Note 2 of these financial statements. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in

our report.

Following are the key audit matters:

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Creditors and advances from customers

As referred in note 17 to the accompanying financial
statements, the creditors and advances from
customers represent a significant portion of the
financial statements in the context of materiality,
therefore these areas have been determined as key
audit matter to be reported.

Our audit procedures include the following:

- obtained list of parties and circularized
confirmations on sample basis.

- performed arithmetic tests and analytical
procedures.

- checked that the Company has
performance obligation outstanding to
creditors and customers.

- checked that appropriate presentation and
disclosure is made in the financial
statements.

Pending litigations

As referred in note no. 21.1. to the accompanying
financial statements, the Company faces a number
of pending litigations. There is a high level of
judgement required in estimating the level of
provisioning and/or the level of disclosure required.
Where the impact of possible and present
obligations is not probable or not reliably
measurable, and thus no provision is recorded,
failure to adequately disclose the nature of these
circumstances within the financial statements may
distort the reader’s view as to the potential risks
faced by the Company.

Given the nature and amounts involved in such
cases and the appellate forums at which these are
pending, the ultimate outcome and the resultant
accounting in the financial statements is subject to
significant judgment, which can change over time as
new facts emerge and each legal case progresses,
and therefore, we have identified this as key audit

Our audit procedures included the following:

- circularized confirmations to relevant third-
party legal representatives;

- assessed management’s processes to
identify new possible obligations and
changes in existing obligations for
compliance with Company policy and IAS
37 requirements;

- analyzed significant changes from prior
periods and obtained a detailed
understanding of these items and
assumptions applied

- reviewed the subsequent position of
pending litigations and

- assessed the adequacy of disclosures in note
no. 21.1. to the financial statements.

matter.
7} ?
I ||'
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Revenue recognition

Our audit procedures included the following:
As referred in note no. 4.15 and 22 to the
accompanying financial statements, the Company
had minimal revenue in the current financial year,
whereas it had generated no revenue in the last year.

- obtained an understanding of the process
relating to recording of revenue and testing
the design, implementation and operating

. . . . ffectiven f relevant k
We identified the revenue recognition as a key audit criectivencss ° clevant, °y
- f internal controls  over recording of
matter as it is one of the Key Performance Indicators revenue

of the Company and gives rise to an inherent risk of

material misstatement. - assessed the appropriateness of the

Company's  accounting  policy  for
recording of revenue and its compliance
with International Financial Reporting
Standard - Revenue from contracts with
customers (IFRS 15).

- reviewed a sample of contractual
arrangements entered into by the Company
with its customers and checking the
performance obligations involved,
transaction price and recognition of
revenue based on satisfaction of
performance obligation.

- compared a sample of sale transactions
recorded before and after the year end with
relevant underlying documentation to
assess whether revenue has been recorded
in the correct accounting period.

- assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements to be in accordance
with the applicable accounting and
reporting standard.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in
the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Based on the work, we have performed as to report any material misstatement of this other information; we
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 7} ?
fraud or error. ||I' |
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX 0of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together
with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the period were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Adeel Anwar (ACA).

E,{ﬂi'ﬁ-i’lf :‘Jf..uu.:.lk L% l:“’L_,

Chartered Accountants
Place: Lahore
Date:

UDIN: AR20251036617¢Mxq3ZE
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2019

Name of Company: ABDULLAH SHAH GHAZI SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Year Ended: September 30, 2025
The company has complied with the requirements of the regulations in the following manner:

The total number of directors is seven as per the following:

a Male: 6
b Female: 1
2 The composition of the board is as follows:
Category Names

Mr. Fiaz Qadeer Butt
Mst. Bilgees Begum

Mr. Amjad Abbas

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Muddssar Igbal
Mr. Muhammad Rasheed Rana

Independent Directors

Executive Directors Mr. Muhammad Dawood

Mr. Yasir Igbal
Female Directors Mst. Bilgees Begum
3 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than
seven listed Companies including this, Company.
4 The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps

have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting
policies and procedures.

5 The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the Company. The board has ensured that complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is
maintained by the Company.

6 All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters
have been taken by the board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of
the Act and these Regulations.

7 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the
requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

8 The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.
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9 Five members of the Board have requisite education and experience on the Board(s) of
listed companies and are exempt from Directors’ Training Program. Three directors have
already completed training course as required.

10 The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and head of internal
audit, including their remuneration, terms, and conditions of employment complied with
relevant requirements of the regulations.

11 Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board.

12 The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Names of Committee Names of Members and Chairman

Audit Committee Mr. Fiaz Qadeer Butt (Chairman/Member)
Mr. Muddssar Igbal (Member)

Mr. Amjad Abbas (Member)

Human Resource and Remuneration Mr. Fiaz Qadeer Butt (Chairman/Member)
Committee Mr. Muddssar Igbal (Member)

Mr. Amjad Abbas (Member)

13 The term of reference of the aforesaid committee have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance.

14 The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) were as per following:

a Audit Committee Quarterly

b HR&R Committee Yearly

15 The Board has set up an effective outsourced internal audit function who are considered

suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies
and procedures of the Company.

16 The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan,
that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in
audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children)
of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, Company
secretary or director of the Company.

17 The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

18 We confirm that all other requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of
the regulations have been complied with.
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19 Explanation for noncompliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,
32, 33 and 36 are below;

he function risk of management
Constitution of Risk
committee are currently performed by chief
1 Management . . . 30
i internal auditor who apprises the board
Committee .
accordingly.
Disclosure of Significant Thg sompany mtlends to disclose its significant
2 . ) policies on website before the close of current 35
Policies on Website .
fiscal year.
On behalf of the board of director
L
Muhammad Rasheed Rana
(Chairman)
Lahore January 06, 2026
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Abdullah Shah
Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended September 30, 2025 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations, and report if it does not, and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all
risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's
corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required, and have ensured compliance of, this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Following instances of non-compliance with the requirement of the Regulations were observed which is not
explained in the Statement of Compliance:

i) There is no female director in Company. (Regulation number 7)
ii) Risk management committee has not been constituted ( Regulation number 30).

Based on our review, except for the above instances of non-compliance, nothing has come to our attention
which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s
compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended 30 September 2025.

Zanid Souwd 3 G3:

ZAHID JAMIL & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Place: Lahore

(Engagement Partner: Adeel Anwar, ACA)
Date:

UDIN: CR202510366HzANQfB6K
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock in trade
Advances
Other receivables
Tax refunds due from the Government
Cash and bank balances

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Authorized
100,000,000 (2024: 100,000,000)
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Capital reserve

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net
Revenue reserve:

Accumulated loss

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term loan from related party - unsecured
Long term financing
Deferred liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Accrued mark-up
Short term borrowings
Current portion of long term financing
Provision for taxation

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE

12.1.

12.2.

13.

13.

14.
15.
16.

17.
18.
19.
20.
27.

21.

2025
RUPEES

3,209,662,254

2024
RUPEES

3,239,137,229

47,540,969 54,291,647
3,885,126 .
13,690,722 23,290,605
302,735 302,735
16,028,185 13,241,394
4,488,343 1,292,593
85,936,080 92,418,974

3,295,598,334

3,331,556,203

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

792,616,660

1,053,387,494

(2,802,233,637)

792,616,660

1,110,654,739

(2,548,814,371)

(956,229,483)  (645,542,972)
856,803,592 731,369,788
222,000,000 236,028,000
136,021,612 223,121,174

1,214,825,204

1,190,518,962

2,300,794,169
698,194,512
18,973,000
15,000,000
4,040,932

2,188,946,493
567,688,720
18,973,000
10,972,000

3,037,002,613

2,786,580,213

3,295,598,334

3,331,556,203

&
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited

30



STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

42nd Annual Report 2025

2025 2024
NOTE RUPEES RUPEES
Sales - net 22. 273,713,570 -
Cost of sales 23. (522,251,625) (220,528,673)
Gross loss (248,538,055) (220,528,678)
Administrative and general expenses 24, (16,772,629) (14,905,419)
Operating loss (265,310,684) (235,434,097)
Other income 25. 20,778,277 208,200,655
Loss before interest and tax (244,532,407) (27,233,442)
Finance cost 26. (150,198,913) (195,265,274)
Loss before levy and taxation (394,731,320) (222,498,716)
Levy 27. (4,040,932) -
Loss before taxation (398,772,252) (222,498,716)
Taxation 27. 88,056,067 30,965,342
Loss for the year (310,716,185) (191,533,374)
Loss per share - basic and diluted 28. (3.92) (2.42)
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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— N .
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

2025 2024
NOTE RUPEES RUPEES

Loss for the year (310,716,185) (191,533,374)
Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or

loss:

Re-measurement of defined benefit liability - net of deferred tax 16.1.5. 29,674 2,362,872
Total comprehensive loss for the year (310,686,511) (189,170,503)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025
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Reserves
Capital Revenue
Share Capital Surplus on Jotal
P . Total Reserves Equity
Revaluation of | Accumulated Loss
PPE (Net)
RUPEES
Balance as at September 30, 2023 | 792,616,660 | 1,171,239257 | (2.420.228387)]  (1,248,989.130)] (456,372,470)]
Loss for the year ended September 30, 2024 - - (191,533,374) (191,533,374) (191,533,374)
Other comprehensive income - - 2,362,872 2,362,872 2,362,872
- - (189,170,502) (189,170,502) (189,170,502)
Incremental depreciation on property, plant
and equipment for the year (net of deferred
taxation) - (60,584,518) 60,584,518 - -
Balance as at September 30, 2024 | 792,616,660 | 1,110,654.739 [ (2.548.81437D)]  (1,438.159.632)] (645,542,972)]
Loss for the year ended September 30, 2025 - - (310,716,185) (310,716,185) (310,716,185)
Other comprehensive income - - 29,674 29,674 29,674
- - (310,686,511) (310,686,511) (310,686,511)
Incremental depreciation on property, plant
and equipment for the year (net of deferred
taxation) - (57,267,245) 57,267,245 - -
Balance as at September 30, 2025 | 792,616,660 | 1,053.387,494 [ (2.802,233,637)[  (1,748,846,143)] (956,229.483)]
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
— \ , &
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

2025
NOTE RUPEES

42nd Annual Report 2025

A-CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash income and expenses:

(394,731,320)

2024
RUPEES

(222,498,716)

Depreciation 5.1.1. 165,886,355 152,904,200
Financial cost 130,562,154 174,723,689
Provision for gratuity 986,180 942,808
Gain on sale of vehicle - (2,807,239)
Creditor written-back 25. (20,778,277) (205,393,416)
276,656,413 120,370,042

Cash flows before working capital changes
Effect on cash flows due to changes in working capital:

(Increase) / decrease in current assets :

(118,074,907)

(102,128,674)

Stores, spares and loose tools 6. 6,750,678 (15,317,516)
Stock in trade 7. (3,885,126) 194,400
Advances 8. 9,599,883 60,342,252
Other receivables 9. - 15,815,000
Tax refunds due from the Government 10. (1,713,233) (4,701,394)
10,752,202 56,332,742
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities :
Trade and other payables 17. 132,625,952 (55,973,318)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 25,303,247 (101,769,250)
Income tax paid (1,073,558) (423,169)
Finance cost paid (56,363) (889,664)
Gratuity paid - (261,875)
(1,129,921) (1,574,708)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 24,173,326 (103,343,958)
B-CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2,243,050) (22,000)
Payment for capital work in progress 5.2. (134,168,330) -
Net cash used in investing activities (136,411,380) (22,000)
C-CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments against long term financing 15. (10,000,000) (10,972,000)
Proceeds from sales of assets - 2,990,000
Proceeds from long term loan from related party 14. 125,433,804 109,295,841
Net cash generated from financing activities 115,433,804 101,313,841
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and bank balances (A+B+C) 3,195,750 (2,052,117)
Cash and bank balances at the beginning of the year 1,292,593 3,344,710
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year 4,488,343 1,292,593
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. )
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‘i}.mmn_au- N -]
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited




42nd Annual Report 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
The Company was incorporated in Pakistan on February 25, 1984 as a Private Limited Company and was subsequently converted
into a Public Limited Company on February 11, 1990. The Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal
business of the Company is manufacturing and selling of refined sugar and by-products.

The Company has been classified as Public Interest Company as per the guidelines of SECP and ICAP.

| Business Unit | Geographical Location |

Head / Registered Office Registered office of the Company is situated at 7/10, A-2 Arkay Square,
Shahra - e - Liaquat, New Challi, Karachi.

Mills / Plant Garho, District Thatta, Sindh, Pakistan.

2. MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2025, show that the Company incurred a net loss tax
of Rs. 394,731,320/- (2024: Rs. 222,498,716/-) in the current year including depreciation of Rs. 165,886,355/~ (2024: Rs.
152,904,200/-). The current liabilities exceed the current assets by an amount of Rs. 2,951,066,533/- (2024: Rs. 2,694,161,239/-)
and its accumulated loss stands out at Rs. 2,802,233,637/- (2024 Rs. 2,548,814,371/-).These conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as going concern and therefore the
Company may not be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. In spite of the above-
stated circumstances, the management of the Company considers that the going concern assumption used for the preparation of
these financial statements is appropriate due to the following mitigating factors:

(a) Arbitration efforts to resolve issues with TCP are underway and it is expected that the Company will be able to
settle the subject amount in a favorable and sustainable manner. Also see note no.21.1. (a).

(b) The sponsors have unconditional commitment to enable Company to continue as a going concern.

(c) The financing arrangement with Bank Islami Pakistan Limited has been successfully restructured. As per the
restructured agreement, the loan will be repaid in installments upto June 30, 2032. The Bank Islami Limited had
filed a recovery suit for Rs. 360,907,225 on account of loan recovery against the Company, on May 2021, which
will be withdrawn on completion of payments under restructuring agreement. Further details regarding the legal
proceedings have been disclosed in note 21.1. (b).

Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis.
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

3.2 Basis of Measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the “historical cost convention” except of certain classes of property,
plant and equipment which are stated at revalued amount and employee retirement benefits which are stated at fair value.

3.3 Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupee, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. All
financial information presented in Pak Rupee has been rounded off to the nearest Rupee unless stated otherwise.

3.4 Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted for the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those applied in the
preparation of the preceding annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2024, to the
extent and manner stated.

35

Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited



42nd Annual Report 2025

3.5 Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective in the

current year
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended September 30, 2025.

These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not
expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional

3.5.1

disclosures.
Effective Date -
Annual Periods
Beginning on or After
IFRS 16 'Leases' - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback [Amendments] January 1, 2024
IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-current Liabilities January 1, 2024

with covenants [Amendments]

IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' and IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: January 1, 2024
Supplier Finance Arrangements [Amendments]

IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of

Liabilities as 'Comparative Information' January 1, 2024

3.5.2 Standards, interpretation and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on
or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either
not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's
financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective Date -
Annual Periods
Beginning on or After

IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' - Lack of January 1, 2025
Exchangeability [Amendments]

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' and IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments Disclosures' January 1, 2026
Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments [Amendments]

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' January 1, 2027

Other than the aforesaid amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which have not been
adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The following interpretations issued by the IASB have been waived off by SECP:
- [FRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains lease

- IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

3.6. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. In addition, it requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historic
experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. In process of applying the Company's accounting policies, the management has made following estimates
and judgements which are significant to financial statements:
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Information about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies and approved accounting
(i)  Useful life, residual value and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment (notes 4.1 & 5)
(i)  Stores, spares and loose tools (note 4.2 & 6)
(iii)  Stock in trade (notes 4.3 & 7)
(iv)  Measurement of defined benefit obligation - Key actuarial assumptions (notes 4.11 & 16.1.6)
(v)  Provision for taxation (notes 4.12 & 27)
(vi)  Provisions (note 4.14)
(vii) Impairment (note 4.16)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) Operating Fixed Assets

- Fixed assets including additions are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and less

- Depreciation on operating fixed assets is provided on the reducing balance method over its useful
life at the rates specified in the operating fixed assets schedule.

- Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

- Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred.
Major repairs and improvements, which increase the asset’s remaining useful economic life or the
performance beyond the current estimated levels, are capitalized.

- Gain or loss on scrapping or disposal of assets, if any, is charged to statement of profit or loss.

- The incremental depreciation charged on revalued assets during the year is transferred to retained
earnings/accumulated loss to record realization of surplus to the extent of incremental

(b) Capital Work in Progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost less identified impairment losses, if any. All expenditure including
applicable borrowing costs, if any, connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction
period are carried under capital work in progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when these are
available for use.

(¢) Revaluation

Operating fixed assets are stated at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity so that the fair value and carrying value do not differ materially at the date of statement of
financial position. Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of fixed assets are recognised, net of
tax (other than on land), in other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders'
equity and to the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
the increase is first recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Decreases, that reverse previous increases of the
same asset are first recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to
the asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. Each year, the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of profit or loss and
depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus on property, plant
and equipment to accumulated loss. Depreciation is charged to income applying reducing balance method to write-
off the cost over the estimated remaining useful life of assets. The useful life and depreciation method are
reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern
of economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment.

The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders.

4.2 Stores, Spares and loose tools
Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessarily to be
incurred in order to make the sale.

Stores in transit are valued at invoice values including other charges, if any, incurred thereon.
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4.3 Stock-in-trade
These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost is determined as follows:

Raw materials: Weighted average cost

Goods in transit: Cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
Work in process: Weighted average manufacturing cost

Finished goods: Average manufacturing cost

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in ordinary course of business less expenses necessary to be
incurred in order to make the sale.

4.4 Advances and Taxes Receivable
These are carried at cost less provision made for doubtful receivables based on review of all outstanding amounts at the
year end. Advances or taxes receivable considered irrecoverable are written off.

4.5 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at nominal amounts. For the purpose of the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and balances with banks in current and saving
accounts.

4.6 Financial Instruments
All the financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a portion of a financial asset when, and only
when, the enterprise loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial asset or portion of the financial
asset. While a financial liability or part of a financial liability is derecognized from the statement of financial position,
when, and only when it is extinguished, i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

(a) Financial Assets
Financial assets may include long term deposits, short term loans and advances, other receivable and cash and
bank balances. These are initially recognized at cost which represent fair value of consideration given for them.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are carried at cost, if fair value is not materially different at the
date of statement of financial position.

(b) Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual agreements entered into. Significant
financial liabilities are long term loans, short term finances and trade and other payables. All financial liabilities
are initially recognized at cost, which represents fair value of the consideration received at initial recognition.
After initial recognition, financial liabilities held for trading are carried at fair value and all other financial
liabilities are measured at amortized cost.

4.7 Financial Assets Classification
Effective October 01, 2020, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(1)  Amortised cost where the effective interest rate method will apply;
(i)  Fair value through profit or loss; and
(iii)  Fair value through other comprehensive income.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in statement of profit or loss or other
comprehensive income (OCI).

Recognition and Derecognition

Regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, which is the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Further, financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at

fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial

asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in statement of profit or loss.
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Definition of Default
The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management purposes as

historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the Company).

Impairment of Financial Assets

Effective October 01, 2020, the Company assesses on a historical as well as forward-looking basis, the expected credit
loss (ECL) as associated with its trade debts. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:

- Trade debts

- Cash and bank balances

Simplified Approach for Trade Debts

The Company recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The measurement of ECL reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Recognition of Loss Allowance
The Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Write-off

The Company writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has
concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is
based on unavailability of debtor’s sources of income or assets to generate sufficient future cash flows to repay the
amount.

The Company may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off will result in impairment gains.

Financial Liabilities

Classification, Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:

1) Fair value through profit or loss; and

i) Other financial liabilities.

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in case of other financial liabilities, also include directly attributable transaction
costs. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

Fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability upon recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

Other Financial Liabilities

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities, which are interest bearing, are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss for the year, when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through effective interest rate amortisation process.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when and only when the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expired.

Off Setting of Financial Instruments

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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4.9 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

4.10 Borrowings
Loans and borrowings are recorded at their fair value being the proceeds received. Financial charges are accounted for by
applying effective interest rate method and included in accrued liabilities.

4.11 Staff Retirement Benefits
The Company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme covering all employees eligible to the benefit. Provisions are made
on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuations are carried out as at 30th September 2025, using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, as required by International Accounting Standards (IAS-19).

The amount recognized in statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
on 30th September 2025, as adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains and losses.
The amendments in IAS 19 require the recognition of changes in defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan asset
when they occur, thus eliminating 'Corridor Approach' permitted under previous version of IAS 19, thus accelerating
recognition of past service cost. All actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately through 'Other Comprehensive
Income'.

4.12 Taxation

(a) Current Income Tax
Provision for current tax is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law
for taxation of income. The charge for tax on income is calculated at the current rates of taxation as applicable
after taking into account tax credit and tax rebates available, if any. Income tax expense is recognized in statement
of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in equity.

(b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes.

Deferred tax asset is recognized for all the deductible temporary differences only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset may be utilized. Deferred tax asset is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that related tax benefits will be realized. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all the taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax asset and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the

asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax is charged in the statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items charged to other
comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is included in other comprehensive income or equity.

(c) Sales Tax/ Excise Duty
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax / FED except:
- Where the sales tax / FED incurred on purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority.
- Receivables and payables balances that are stated with the amount of sales tax / FED included.

The net amount of sales tax / FED recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.
4.13 Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of consideration to be paid for goods and/or services
received, whether or not billed to the Company.

4.14 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation of which
reliable estimate can be made. The expense related to provision is presented in profit and loss, net of any reimbursements.
The provision is recognized at its present value, accounting for time value of money, except where the impact for
discounting is considered to be immaterial. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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4.15 Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Customers:

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in [FRS-15:

Step-1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that

creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step-2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a

customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step-3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company

expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected

on behalf of third parties.

Step-4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one

performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that

depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each

performance obligation.

Step-5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Mentioned below are different revenue streams of the Company and their terms of recognition of revenue after satisfying

all the five steps of revenue recognition in accordance with IFRS 15.

(a) Sale of Goods

The Company's contracts with customers for the sale of goods generally include one performance obligation,
which is recognized at a point of time. Revenue is recognized when goods are dispatched to customers and bill of
lading is prepared. It is the time when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
customer, recovery of the consideration is probable , the associated costs and possible return of goods can be
estimated reliably, there is no continuing involvement of management, and the goods and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably. Revenue from sale of goods is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of discounts and applicable taxes.

(b) Interest Income
Interest and rental income are recognized on accrual basis.
(c) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.
(d) Scrap Sales
Sale of scrap is recognized on actual realization basis.
(e) Others
Return on deposits is accounted for on accrual basis.

Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities
Contract Assets

Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a customer before
the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due.

Contract Liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability
is recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs its
performance obligations under the contract.

Presentation and Disclosure Requirements

As required for the financial statements, the Company disaggregated revenue recognized from contracts with customers
into categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by
economic factors.

4.16 Impairment
(a) Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each date of statement of financial position whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial asset is impaired. A financial asset is deemed to be impaired if and only if
there is an objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that
can be reliably estimated. Any impairment loss on financial assets, including the financial assets carried at
amortized cost, is recognized in statement of profit or loss.
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(b) Non-financial Assets

The Company continually assesses at each date of statement of financial position whether there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess
whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is
recognized in statement of profit or loss for the year. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in
the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

When impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
recoverable amount but limited to the extent of the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized. Reversal of impairment loss is recognized
as income.

4.17 Related Party Transactions

All transactions between Company and related parties are accounted for in the normal course of business and carried out
on mutually agreed terms. The Company voluntarily places the related party transactions before the Board of Directors for
their consideration and approval, distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail
in accordance with normal business price, recording proper justification for using if any, alternate pricing mechanism.

4.18 Dividends

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved.

4.19 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit and loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders' of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by using profit and loss attributable to ordinary shareholders' and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

4.20 Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component within the Company that is engaged in providing products and under a common
control environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other
segments. Segments results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire
property, plant and equipment. The principal business of the Company is manufacturing and selling of refined sugar and
by-products therefore no segmentation has been provided.
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NOTE
5. Property, Plant and Equipment
Operating fixed assets 5.1.
Capital work in progress 5.2.

5.1.1. Depreciation for the period has been allocated as under :

Cost of goods manufactured
Administrative and general expenses

5.1.2. Had there been no revaluation, the carrying amount of revalued assets would have been as follows:

Land freehold
Experimental land
Building on land freehold
Factory
Non-factory
Plant and machinery

42nd Annual Report 2025

2025 2024
RUPEES RUPEES

3,075,493,924 3,239,137,229
134,168,330 -

3,209,662,254 3,239,137,229

163,157,593 149,917,835
2,728,762 2,986,365
165,886,354 152,904,200
3,937,054 3,937,054
2,490,004 2,490,004
37,553,307 41,725,897
9,160,719 10,178,577
2,398,205,003 2,524,426,319
2,451,346,087 2.582,757.851

5.1.3. Forced sale value, as at September 30, 2019, as per revaluation of freehold land was Rs. 18.09 M, building was Rs. 140.40 M and plant and machinery was

Rs. 2.88 B.
5.2. Capital work in progress - at cost

Opening balance
Add: Additions during the year
Less: Transfer to property, plant and equipment
5.2.1.

5.2.1. This represents capital work in progress related to plant and machinery.

. 422,484,339
134,168,330 -
- (422,484,339)

134,168,330 -

The management carried out an impairment review at the year end as per IAS 36 and is of the view that there is no impairment that needs to be accounted for in

the financial statements relating to capital work in progress.
. Stores, spares and loose tools

(=)

Stores and spares

=2

. Stock in trade

Work in process
Finished goods

oo

. Advances
Unsecured

Considered good

Growers

Contractors

Suppliers

Employees against salaries
Employees for other expenses

o

. Other receivables
Other receivables 9.1.
9.1. It inculdes recoverable against Competition Commission of Pakistan penalty, which is currently under appeal.
10. Tax refunds due from the Government

Income tax refundable
Sales tax refundable

11. Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand

Cash at banks
-Current accounts
-Saving accounts

47,540,969 54,291,647
3,885,126 -
3,885.126 -
4,536,506 4,852,896

. 1,170,425
2,521,258 9,565,755
731,520 858,153
5,901,438 6,843,376
13,690,722 23,290,605
302,735 302,735
5,161,898 4,088,340

10,866,287 9,153,054

16,028,185 13,241,394
3,771,258 510,645

616,014 680,877
101,071 101,071
4,488,343 1,292,593
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2025 2024
12. Share capital NOTE RUPEES RUPEES
12.1. Authorized share capital

2025 2024
Number of Shares

100,000,000 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

12.2. Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
2025 [ 2024

Number of Shares

79,261,666 79,261,666 792,616,660 792,616,660
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in cash

12.3. 62,215,609 (2024: 62,215,609) ordinary shares are held by M/s Haq Bahu Sugar Mills (Private) Limited (holding Company) representing 78.49% (2024:
78.49%) shareholding in the Company.
12.4. Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to the shareholding of the sharcholders.

13. Reserves
Capital reserves

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (Net) 13.1. 1,053,387,494 1,110,654,739

Revenue reserves
Accumulated loss (2,802,233,637) (2,548,814,371)
(1,748,846,143) (1,438,159,632)

13.1. Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net

The latest revaluation of property, plant and equipment of the Company was carried out by independent professional valuers, Unicorn International Surveyors
(Approved business valuers on the panel of Pakistan Bank's Association), which resulted in the revaluation surplus of Rs. 1,372,972,411/- and report was issued
on September 30, 2019. The Company has incorporated the revaluation adjustments in the relevant financial statements.

Opening balance 1,557,294,037 1,642,624,345
Add: Revaluation during the year

Less: Transferred to equity in respect of:

Incremental depreciation on revalued asset (57,267,245) (60,584,518)
Related deferred tax liability (23,390,846) (24,745,790)
(80,658,091) (85,330,308)
Closing balance - gross 1,476,635,946 1,557,294,037
Less: Related deferred tax liability
Related deferred tax liability on revaluation surplus 446,639,298 471,385,088
Amount realized during the year on account of incremental depreciation (23,390,846) (24,745,790)
423,248,452 446,639,298
Closing balance- Net 13.1.1. 1,053,387,494 1,110,654,739

13.1.1. The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve and in not available for distribution to the sharecholders of the Company in
accordance with the section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

14. Long term loan from related party - unsecured

Loan from the holding Company 856,803,592 731,369,788

The loan has been advanced by M/s. Haq Bahu Sugar Mills (Pvt.) Ltd. which carries mark-up @ 3 months KIBOR plus 1% (2024: @ 3 months KIBOR plus 1%)
payable half yearly. Since the loan will not be repayable within next twelve months, therefore, the same has been classified as a long term liability. The loan is
subject to BOD resolution / approval.

15. Long term financing

Secured
-Under mark-up arrangements
Islamic finance

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 15.1. 237,000,000 247,000,000
237,000,000 247,000,000

Less: Current portion of long term financing (15,000,000) (10,972,000)
222,000,000 236,028,000

15.1. The Bank Islami Limited had filed a recovery suit for Rs. 360,907,225/~ on account of loan recovery against the Company. On May 2021, the learned court has
reserved its judgment on this issue. Although, the case would be discharged from the court once the loan matures and NOC issued by the bank is filed with the
court, but both the Company and the bank have mutually agreed to restructure the financing arrangement. Under the restructured financing arrangement, the
Company shall pay principal amount of Rs. 275 Million, mark-up amount of Rs. 36.444 Million and an estimated additional rental / future profit of Rs. 126.358

Million to the bank by June 30, 2032, with markup payments starting from September 2028. Further details regarding the legal proceedings have been disclosed
in note 21.1 (c).
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2025 2024
NOTE RUPEES RUPEES
16. Deferred liabilities
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 16.1. 5,512,037 4,567,651
Deferred taxation 16.2. 130,509,575 218,553,523
136,021,612 223,121,174

16.1. Staff retirement benefits - gratuity
The Company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme covering all employees eligible to the benefit. Provisions are made on the basis of actuarial
recommendations. The latest actuarial valuations are carried out as at 30th September 2025 using the Projected Unit Credit Method, as required by International
Accounting Standards (IAS-19).

16.1.1. Amount recognized in the statement of financial position

Present value of defined benefit obligation 16.1.2. 5,512,037 4,567,651
16.1.2. Movement in liability
Opening balance 4,567,651 7,214,707
Current service cost 473,853 420,831
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 512,327 521,977
Re-measurements chargeable in other comprehensive income (41,794) (3,327,989)
Benefits paid - (261,875)
5,512,037 4,567,651

16.1.3. Amount charged to statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 473,853 420,831
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 512,327 521,977
986.180 942.808

16.1.4. Expenses recognised in statement of profit or loss
Cost of sales 936,871 395,979
Administrative and general expenses 49,309 546,829
986,180 942,808

16.1.5. Re-measurements chargeable in other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of plan obligation:

Actuarial gains/(losses) from changes in financial assumptions 41,794 3,327,989
Experience adjustments - -

41,794 3,327,989

Related deferred tax liability @ 29% (12,120) (965,117)
29,674 2,362,872

16.1.6. Principal actuarial assumptions

Discount rate used for interest cost in statement of profit or loss 11.32% 14.40%

Discount rate used for year end obligation 11.75% 12.00%

Salary increase used for year end obligation N/A N/A

Net salary is increased at 01/01/2026 01/01/2025

According to SLIC According to SLIC
Mortality rates 2001-2005 table, with  2001-2005 table, with
one year setback one year setback
Withdrawal rates Age-Based Age-Based
Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60
16.1.7. Year end sensitivity analysis (= 100 bps) on defined benefit obligation

Discount rate + 100 bps 5,294,219 4,391,780

Discount rate - 100 bps 5,741,871 4,753,202

Salary Increase + 100 bps 5,743,467 4,754,920

Salary Increase - 100 bps 5,288,873 4,387,070

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 4 years.

16.1.8. Expected maturity profile

Following are the expected distribution and timing of benefit payments at the year end: 2025

Year RUPEES

2026 112,997
2027 107,485
2028 99,217
2029 95,909
2030 90,949
2031 to 2035 418,916
2036 onwards 4,586,564

Average duration of defined benefit obligation: 4.51 years

16.1.9. Projected charge to statement of profit or loss for the year ending September 30, 2026 is as follows:
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2025 2024
NOTE RUPEES RUPEES
Current service cost 1,304,534
Interest cost 613,657
1,918,191
16.2. Deferred taxation
The liability of deferred tax comprises of temporary differences relating to:
Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation 295,891,606 246,768,786
Revaluation surplus 423,248,452 446,639,298
719,140,058 693,408,084
Deductible temporary differences
Retirement benefit obligation (1,598,491) (1,324,619)
Minimum tax available for carry forward (4,040,932) -
Unused tax losses (582,991,059) (473,529,942)
(588,630,483) (474,854,561)
130,509,574 218,553,523

Deferred tax asset on business losses has been provided on the basis of expectation of future availability of normal taxable profits in the future against which this
deferred tax asset could be utilized.

16.2.1. Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:
At beginning of the year 218,553,523 248,553,748
Effect of rate change - -
Recognized in statement of profit or loss:

Accelerated tax depreciation / amortization 49,122,820 713,211
Incremental depreciation (23,390,846) (24,745,790)
Minimum tax available for carry forward (4,040,932) -
Tax credits / unused tax losses (109,461,117) (7,388,387)
Retirement benefit obligation (285,992) 455,625
(88,056,067) (30,965,342)
Recognized in statement of other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income 12,120 965,117
At end of the year 130,509,576 218,553,523
17. Trade and other payables
Creditors for goods and services 911,646,755 851,577,980
Advance from customers 17.1. 1,202,149,384 1,168,529,857
Accrued liabilities 15,238,904 15,899,803
Deposits 39,076 39,076
Income tax withheld 301,967 2,015,031
Workers' profit participation fund 17.2. 149,957,339 131,749,551
Workers' welfare fund 17.3. 11,768,838 10,339,868
Other liabilities 9,691,906 8,795,327
2,300,794,169 2,188,946,493

17.1. 1t includes an amount of Rs. 521.162 million related to a disputed balance with the Trading Corporation of Pakistan. Refer to note 21.1 (a & b) for detailed
information regarding the dispute. The matter is sub - judice with the appellate authority.
17.2. Workers' profit participation fund

Opening balance 131,749,551 112,702,781
Created during the year - -
Interest charged 18,207,788 19,046,770
149,957,339 131,749,551
Paid during the year - -
149,957,339 131,749,551

No provision has been recognized in the current year and preceding year due to accounting loss. Furthermore, mark up has been charged including late payment
surcharge @ 13.82% (1 year KIBOR plus 2.5%) (2024:16.90%).
17.3. Workers' welfare fund
Workers' welfare fund 11,768,838 10,339,868

No provision has been recognized in the current year and preceding year due to taxable losses. Furthermore, mark up has been charged including late payment
surcharge @ 13.82% (1 year KIBOR plus 2.5%) (2024:16.90%).
18. Accrued mark-up
Islamic mode of financing:

Long term financing 123,041,491 105,806,387

Other
Long term financing 18.1. 575,153,021 461,882,333
698,194,512 567,688,720

18.1. The mark-up is payable to M/s Haq Bahu Sugar Mills (Pvt.) Limited, holding Company, calculated @ 3 month KIBOR +1% (2024: 3 month KIBOR +1%).
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19.

20.

21.
21.1.

21.2.

22.

23.

Short term borrowings
Other financing (Unsecured)

NOTE

19.1.
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The financing facility has been obtained from Mr. Azhar Qadeer Butt (related party). This loan is interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

Current portion of long term financing

Current portion of long term financing
Contingencies and commitments

Contingencies

15.

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
18,973,000 18,973,000
15,000,000 10,972,000

(a) The Company received advances from Trading Corporation of Pakistan (TCP) under four different sugar supply agreements. The Company contends
that this amount is not due as the buyer did not fulfill its performance obligations. As a prudent policy, adjustments would be made on finalization of
the dispute. The Company is of the view that Trading Corporation of Pakistan has made numerous breaches of the agreements causing enormous losses
to the Company and has filed a civil suit in court of Honourable Civil Judge, Lahore praying to refer the dispute for arbitration under the terms of the

agreements. The matter is a pending arguments before the Court.

(b) Bank Islami Limited had filed a recovery suit for Rs. 360,907,225/~ on account of loan recovery against the Company. On May 2021, the learned court
has reserved its judgment on this issue. Although, the case would be discharged from the court once the loan matures and NOC issued by the bank is
filed with the court, but both the Company and the bank have mutually agreed to restructure the financing arrangement. Under the restructured
financing arrangement, the Company shall pay principal amount of Rs. 275 Million, mark-up amount of Rs. 36.444 Million and an estimated additional
rental / future profit of Rs. 126.358 Million to the bank by June 30, 2032, with markup payments starting from September 2028.

Commitments
There have been no known commitments as at statement of financial position date (2024: Nil).

Sales - net
Local sales
Sugar
Molasses
Total gross sales

Less :Taxes

Cost of sales
Cost of sugar cane
Stores and spares consumed
Oil and lubricants consumed
Packing material consumed
Chemical consumed
Salaries, wages and benefits
Water, fuel and power
Vehicle running and maintenance
Freight, handling and octroi
Depreciation
Others

Work in process
Opening stock
Closing stock
Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods
Opening stock
Add: Molasses Purchases
Closing stock

23.1. It includes an amount of Rs.936,871/- (2024: 395,979/-) relating to staff retirement benefits - gratuity.

24.

24.1. It also includes an amount of Rs.49,309/- (2024: 546,828/-) relating to staff retirement benefits - gratuity.

Administrative and general expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits
Fees, subscription and renewals
Vehicle running and maintenance
Legal and professional charges
Printing and stationery
Travelling, conveyance and entertainment
Rent, rates and taxes
Auditor's remuneration
Depreciation
Entertainment
Miscellaneous

24.1.

24.2.
5.1.1.

146,574,580 -
176,700,001 -
323,274,581 -
(49,561,011) .
273,713,570 n

194,527,089 -

5,191,104 19,624,422
1,575,325 1,440,196

872,181 -
3,251,721 84,591
30,878,636 38,649,252
10,647,880 7,508,246
933,977 741,475
1,362,959 480,470
163,157,593 149,917,835
880,335 1,887,793
413,278,800 220,334,278
- 194,400

(3,885,126) -
409,393,674 220,528,678

112,857,951

522,251,625 220,528,678
4,971,942 2,877,903
3,622,979 1,101,578

257,147 109,906
475,000 1,784,500
400,088 280,178
100,100 470,600
134,000 137,600
1,465,000 1,150,000
2,728,762 2,986,365
388,829 224,665
2,228,782 3,782,123
16,772,629 14,905,419
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2025 2024
NOTE RUPEES RUPEES
24.2. Auditor's remuneration

Annual audit fee 950,000 950,000
Review of code of corporate governance 100,000 100,000

Half yearly review 100,000 100,000
1,150,000 1,000,000

25. Other income

Gain on sales of vehicle - 2,807,239
Creditor written-back 25.1. 20,778,277 205,393,416
20,778,277 208,200,655

25.1. This represents an amount that is regarded as not being payable anymore. This includes the balance relating to Abdullah Shah Ghazi Petroleum services, which
has been non-operational/shut down for an extended period and against which no claim exists. The remaining amount includes salary settlement adjustment and
old creditors that have been fully resolved or are no longer enforceable and thus has now been realized as the Company's other income.

26. Finance cost

Mark up on related party's loan - Haq Bahu Sugar Mills (Private) Limited 113,270,685 156,685,104
Mark up on long term loan 17,235,104 17,994,512
Mark up on WPPF and WWF 19,636,758 20,541,584
Bank charges and commission 56,366 44,074

150,198,913 195,265,274

27. Taxation

Levy
Minimum Tax 27.1. 4,040,932 -

Income Tax expense

Current - -
Deferred

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 27.2. (88,056,067) (30,965,342)

(88,056,067) (30,965,342)

27.1. This represents minimum tax paid under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,representing levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21 and IAS 37.

27.2. Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
The provision for taxation related to current and preceding financial year represents the Minimum Tax Liability under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001. Accordingly, reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit for current and preceding financial year has not been prepared and presented.

27.3. Reconciliation between current tax and levy

Reconciliation of current tax charged as per tax laws for the year, with current tax recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Current tax expense for the year as per applicable tax laws 4,040,932 -
Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws, representing income tax under IAS 12 - -
Portion of levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37 (4,040,932) -

28. Loss per share - basic and diluted
Loss after taxation for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders (310,716,185) (191,533,374)
NUMBER OF SHARES
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 79,261,666 79,261,666
Loss Per share (3.92) (2.42)

28.1. Diluted earning per share

No figures for diluted earnings per share have been presented as the Company has not yet issued any instruments which would have an impact on basic earnings
per share when exercised.

29. Remuneration of chief executive, directors and executives

The aggregate amount charged in the accounts for remuneration, including all benefits, to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company was as

follows:

| Chief Executive || Directors || Executives |

2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Management
remuneration - - - - 2,791,750
Perquisites - - - - - -
- - - - - 2,791,750

Number of
persons 1 1 1 1 3 3
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30. Transaction with related parties
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Related parties comprise of holding company, subsidiary, associated undertakings, directors of the Company, key employees and staff retirement fund. The
Company in normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties on mutually agreed terms and conditions subjected to BOD approval.
Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under receivables and payables. Parent, subsidiary and associated undertakings also have some common

directorship.

Details of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

2025 2024
f rel Relationshi ith th Nat fT ti
Name of related party elationship with the Company ature of Transactions RUPEES RUPEES
Haq Bahu Sugar Mills Holding Company Mark-up accrued 113,270,685 156,685,104
(Private) Limited Purchase of Molasses 112,857,951 -
Loan received 125,433,804 109,295,841
Loan outstanding as at year end 856,803,592 731,369,788
Mr. Azhar Qadeer Butt Major Shareholder in Holding  |Loan received - -
Company Loan repaid - -
Loan outstanding as at year end 18,973,000 18,973,000
31. Financial assets and liabilities
As at September 30, 2025
Fair Value Through
. Fair Value Through Other
Amortised Cost Profit and Loss Comprehensive Total
Income
R
Rupees
Financial assets:
Maturity upto one year
Advances 13,690,722 - - 13,690,722
Cash and bank balances 4,488,343 - - 4,488,343
18,179,065 - - 18,179,065
Other Financial .
Liabilities- At Fair Value Through Total

Financial Liabilities:

Other financial liabilities

Maturity upto one year
Trade and other payables

Amortized Cost

Profit and Loss

R

upees:

2,300,794,169

2,300,794,169

Current maturity of non-current liabilities 15,000,000 - 15,000,000
Accrued mark-up 698,194,512 - 698,194,512
Short term borrowings 18,973,000 - 18,973,000

Maturity after one year
Long term finances 222,000,000 - 222,000,000
Long term loan from related party - unsecured 856,803,592 - 856,803,592
4,111,765,273 - 4,111,765,273

(4,093,586,208)
1,791,998,104
2,319,767,169

Sensitivity gap
Interest bearing financial liabilities
Non-Interest bearing financial liabilities

As at September 30, 2024

Fair Value Through
. Fair Value Through Other
Amortised Cost Profit and Loss Comprehensive Total
Income
Rup
Financial assets:
Maturity upto one year
Advances 23,290,605 - - 23,290,605
Other receivables 302,735 - - 302,735
Tax refund due from government 13,241,394 - - 13,241,394
Cash and bank balances 1,292,593 - - 1,292,593
38,127,327 - - 38,127,327
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Other Financial
Liabilities- At
Amortized Cost

Fair Value Through
Profit and Loss

Total

Rupees

Financial liabilities:
Other financial liabilities

Maturity upto one year

Trade and other payables 2,188,946,493 -

Current maturity of non-current liabilities 10,972,000 -

Accrued mark-up 567,688,720 -

Short term borrowings 18,973,000 -
Maturity after one year

Long term finances 236,028,000 -

Long term loan from related party - unsecured 731,369,788 -

2,188,946,493
10,972,000
567,688,720
18,973,000

236,028,000
731,369,788

3,753,978,001 -

3,753,978,001

Sensitivity gap
Interest bearing financial liabilities
Non-Interest bearing financial liabilities

(3,715,850,674)
1,545,086,508
2,208,891,493

The Company's activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks. The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company’s overall risk management strategy seeks to minimize adverse effects from the
unpredictability of financial markets on the Company’s financial performance. The Company sets policies, strategies and mechanisms, which aim at effective
management of these risks within its unique operating environment. The key financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

Risk management is carried out in accordance with established policies and guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. The management continually
monitors the Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved. Risk management objectives and

policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Company is exposed to the following risk:
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk
a) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter-parties failed completely to perform as contracted.
To reduce exposure to credit risk the Company has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The
management also continuously monitors credit exposure towards the customers and makes provision against those balances considered doubtful of
recovery. Credit risk of the Company arises principally from the trade debts, loans and advances, trade deposits and other receivables. The carrying
amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2025 2024
Financial assets RUPEES RUPEES
Advances 13,690,722 23,290,605
Bank balances 717,085 781,948
14,407,807 24,072,553
Bank balances are held only with reputable banks. The credit rating of banks holding balances is given below:
[ Short-term [ Long-term || Agency I 30-Sep-25 I 30-Sep-24 |
Bank Al Habib Ltd. A-1+ AAA PACRA 75,952 75,952
Meezan Bank Ltd. A-1+ AAA VIS 183,349 58,995
Mcb Bank Ltd. A-1+ AAA PACRA 105,759 296,277
Habib Bank Ltd. A-1+ AAA VIS 31,239 31,238
Sindh Bank Ltd. A-1 A VIS 1,735 1,035
National Bank of Pakistan A-1+ AAA PACRA 85,811 85,811
Silk Bank Ltd. A-2 A- VIS - -
JS Bank Ltd. A-1+ AA PACRA 16,678 16,078
Soneri Bank Ltd. A-1+ AA- PACRA 146,730 146,730
Summit Bank Ltd. A-3 BBB- VIS 69,832 69,832
717,085 781,948

Concentration of credit risk:

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Company's total credit exposure. The Company's portfolio of financial assets is broadly diversified and all

transactions are entered into with credit-worthy counterparties there-by mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.
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(b) Liquidity risk
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Liquidity risk reflects an enterprise's inability in raising funds to meet commitments. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company follows an effective cash management and planning policy to ensure
availability of funds and to take appropriate actions for new requirements. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including
interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

e . . Carrying Amount Contractual More Than One But More Than Five
Non Derivative Financial One Year or Less .
Liabilities 2025 Cash Flows Less Than Five Year Years

Long term loan from related 856,803,592 856,803,592 - 856,803,592 -

party - unsecured

Long term financing 237,000,000 237,000,000 15,000,000 93,500,000 128,500,000

Short term borrowings 18,973,000 18,973,000 18,973,000 - -

Finance cost payable 698,194,512 698,194,512 698,194,512 - -

Trade and other payables 2,300,794,169 2,300,794,169 2,300,794,169 - -
4,111,765,273 4,111,765,273 3,032,961,681 950,303,592 128,500,000

Non Derivative Financial Carrying Amount Contractual One Year or Less More Than One But More Than Five
Liabiliti 2024 Cash Flows Less Than Five Year Years
iabilities

Long term loan from related 731,369,788 731,369,788 - 731,369,788 -

party - unsecured

Long term financing 247,000,000 247,000,000 10,972,000 93,500,000 142,528,000

Short term borrowings 18,973,000 18,973,000 18,973,000 - -

Finance cost payable 567,688,720 567,688,720 567,688,720 - -

Trade and other payables 2,188,946,493 2,188,946,493 2,188,946,493 - -
3,753,978,001 3,753,978.001 2,786,580,213 824,869,788 142,528,000

The contractual cash flows relating to the loan from Bank Islami Pakistan Limited have been determined on the basis of Cost of Funds as provided by SBP as at the
date of restructuring of the financing facility. Amount of loans from respective banks along with their credit ratings are:

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited
(¢) Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

Short-term

Long-term

Agency

30-Sep-25

30-Sep-24

A-1+

AA-

PACRA

237,000,000

247,000,000

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure

to the risk of changes in interest rates relates primarily to the following:

Variable rate instruments at carrying amounts: 2025 2024
Financial liabilities RUPEES RUPEES
Long term loan from related party - unsecured 856,803,592 731,369,788
Long term financing 237,000,000 247,000,000
1,093,803,592 978,369,788

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments:

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, therefore a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments:

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / decreased loss / profit for the year subject to loans
remain outstanding for the whole year by the amounts shown below:

Effect on loss / profit due to change of 100 bps

Increase
Decrease

(ii) Equity price risk

10,938,036
(10,938,036)

9,783,698
(9,783,698)

(iii)

Equity price risk is the risk of volatility in share prices resulting from their dependence on market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and
demand for shares and liquidity in the market. As of the balance sheet date, the Company is not exposed to any such risk.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or a financial liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates.
It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist as a result of transactions with foreign undertakings. As of the balance sheet date, the
Company is not exposed to any such risk.

d) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability can be settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction. The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements are approximate of their fair values.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or
indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market date (unobservable inputs).
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Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows
Arising from financing activities

Balance as at October 01, 2024
Changes from financing activities
Finances repaid

Finances obtained

Mark-up accrued

Mark-up repaid

Balance as at September 30, 2025
Balance as at October 01, 2023
Changes from financing activities

Finances repaid

Finances obtained

Mark-up accrued

Mark-up repaid

Balance as at September 30, 2024

The Company has no investment in listed securities.

32. Capital management
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Short Term Borrowing [ Accrued Markup

Long Term Loans

18,973,000 567,688,719 978,369,788

- - (10,000,000)

- - 125,433,804

- 130,562,154 -

- (56,363) -
18,973,000 698,194,510 1,093,803,592
18,973,000 393,854,694 880,045,947

- - (10,972,000)

- - 109,295,841

- 174,723,689 -

- (889,664) -
18,973,000 567.688.719 978.369.788

The primary objective of the Company's management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios while continue as going

concern in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholder, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts or raise debts, if required.

As of the balance sheet date, the management considers that the capital of the Company is sufficient to meet the requirements of the business.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as under: 2025 2024
RUPEES RUPEES
Long term loan from related party - unsecured 856,803,592 731,369,788
Long term financing 237,000,000 247,000,000
Short term borrowings 18,973,000 18,973,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents (4,488,343) (1,292,593)
Net Debt 1,117,264,935 998,635,381
Net Equity (956,229,483) (645,542,972)
Total capital employed 161,035,452 353,092,409
Gearing Ratio 694% 283%
33. Number of employees
The total and average number of employees during the year and as at September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, are as follows:
2025 2024
Average number of employees during the year 65 55
Number of employees as at year end 34 76
34. Capacity and production
Tonne

Season started on 6-Jan-25

Season closed on 28-Jan-25

Working days 23 -

Crushing capacity 5500 5,500

Sugar cane crushed 15,582.713 -

Sugar produced 1,023.900 -

Recovery ratio 6.650% -

35. Corresponding figures

The corresponding and comparative figures have been rearranged and reclassified for the purpose of comparison and better presentation. However, there has been

no significant reclassification, effecting the financial results.

36 Authorization date

These financial statements have been authorized for issue on January 06, 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Company. I/'\'
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DIRECTOR
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Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited

52



PROXY FORM

ABDULLAH SHAH GHAZ| SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

42ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I/ We S/o r/o
being a member of Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills Limited and

holder of ordinary shares as per registered Folio / CDC Participant ID #.

and CDC Sub Account # [/ CDC Investor Account ID #

hereby appoint Mr. s/o r/o

having
registered Folio / CDC Participant 1D #. and CDC Sub Account # / CDC Investor
Account ID # as my/our proxy to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the 42nd

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 9:00 a.m. on 27 January, 2026 at

or at any adjournment thereof.

Affix Rs. 5/-
Revenue Stamp

Signature of Member
(Signature should agree with the
specimen Registered with the

Company).
Dated this day of , 2026
Witnesses:
1 Signature 2 Signature
Name Name
Address Address
CNIC or Passport # CNIC or Passport #

Important notes:
1. No person shall act as proxy unless he himself is member of the Company, except that a corporate entity may

appoint a person who is not a member. Non-natural members must furnish board resolution / power of attorney
with specimen signatures of proxy along with the proxy form.

2. Attested copies of the CNIC or the Passport of the member and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.
The proxy shall produce original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

3. Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company at its Registered Office not less than forty-
eight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting.

4. CDC Shareholders and their proxies are each requested to attach an attested photocopy of their Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) or Passport with the proxy form before submission to the Company (Original CNIC
/ Passport is required to be produced at the time of the meeting).

5. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the
person nominated to represent and vote on behalf of the corporate entity shall be submitted (unless it has been
provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.
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GET IN TOUCH

O, www.asgsml.com

Abdullah Shah Ghazi Abad,

¢ P.O. Garho, District Thatta




